NORTHUMBERLAND COUNTY COUNCIL

CABINET

At a meeting of the **Cabinet** held at County Hall, Morpeth on Tuesday 24 July 2018 at 11.00 am.

PRESENT

Councillor W. Daley (Deputy Leader of the Council, in the Chair)

CABINET MEMBERS

Jones, V. Sanderson, H.G.H. Oliver, N Wearmouth, R.

OTHER MEMBERS

Davey, J.G.

Dodd, R.R.

Hill, G.

Dunn, E.

Gallacher, B.

Gobin, J.J.

Grimshaw, L.

Hepple, A.

Hill, G.

Ledger, D.

Roughead, G.

Stewart, G.

OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE

Hadfield, K. Committee Services and Scrutiny

Manager

Henry, L Legal Services Manager

Scarr, B. Executive Director of Finance and

Deputy Chief Executive

Two members of the press and public were in attendance

Ch.'s Initials.....

24. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies were received from Councillors Homer, Jackson and Riddle, and from Mrs Lally.

25. REPORT OF THE HEAD OF PROPERTY AND CAPITAL PROGRAMMING

Summary of New Capital Proposals considered by Officer Capital Strategy Group

The report summarised proposed amendments to the Capital Programme considered by the officer Capital Strategy Group at its meeting held on 13 July 2018 (copy attached to the signed minutes as Appendix A).

The report was presented by Councillor Sanderson, who was pleased to put forward the parks enhancement works for Jennings Field.

The salt barns proposal had been a long standing issue. A sheeting solution was being proposed for Rothbury, and a site had been identified which had been subject to an incident of flooding in 2008, so other potential sites were still being given one final consideration.

The car parking proposal was for a permanent solution to the Castlegate overflow car park, and the Council was working closely with Historic England and Berwick Town Council on this initiative. Work was also ongoing to assess the viability of sites to provide more spaces at Morpeth Station, which were badly needed.

Councillor Jones sought reassurances that sufficient consideration had been given to disabled parking bays and accessibility in terms of distance at Castlegate. Councillor Sanderson confirmed this was being taken on board, as well as additional electric charging points being integrated into the plans.

RESOLVED unanimously that County Council be recommended to:

- (a) Parks Enhancement Jennings Field: Approve the proposal and new budget requirement of £50,000, to be met from the Parks Enhancement provision within the 2018-19 capital programme;
- **(b) Salt Barns:** Approve the proposals and new budget requirement of £993,456, to be met from the associated provision within the 2018-19 capital programme;
- (c) Car Parking: Approve the proposals and additional budget requirement of £385,000 (as summarised in Appendix A) to be met from the Car Park provision within the 2018-19 capital programme.

Ch.'s Initials.......... Cabinet, 24 July 2018

26. REPORT OF THE LEGAL SERVICES MANAGER

Provision of Indemnities in Respect of Legal Costs

The report sought Cabinet's agreement to grant indemnities in respect of legal costs likely to have to be incurred by Councillor Peter Jackson, Councillor John Riddle and Mrs Daljit Lally OBE in respect of the matters outlined in the report (copy attached to the signed minutes as Appendix B).

The report was presented by Councillor Oliver, who set the background to the current position and the proposal to provide an indemnity to the individuals concerned. This was as a result of the threat of legal action from the developer of the Dissington Garden VIllage site, and legal advice from Anthony Collins Solicitors suggested that the the individuals should have an legal representation separate to that of the Council, which the indemnity would be in respect of. He detailed the recommendations which had been carefully considered, and commented that it was very important for officers to be protected in carrying out their duties, and not to feel threatened. This was important both for the individual and for the Authority in recruiting and retaining good quality staff. He hoped all political parties would ascribe to that view. Over aggressive legal tactics needed defending against.

Councillor Wearmouth agreed with these sentiments and felt that people in any organisation needed to be able to go about their lawful duties without fear, and that any employer or trade union should support that. He welcomed the clarity of the report and the limits expressed on the level and terms of the indemnity.

Councillor Sanderson agreed and commented that this was not an unusual arrangement to be set up. He fully supported the recommendations.

Councillor Daley queried whether there was any link between the indemnity for the three individuals mentioned regarding the developer of the Dissington Garden Village, and the indemnity for Councillor Jackson and Mrs Lally from a former employee. Mr Henry confirmed there was no link, they were simply presented in the same report for convenience.

Councillor Daley also queried whether the proposals were legal and reasonable in the circumstances. Mr Henry confirmed that, in his opinion as monitoring officer and in the opinion of Counsel, the proposals were entirely lawful under the Local Authorities (Indemnities for Members and Officers) Order 2004. There was no evidence of any wrongdoing from the individuals concerned and an independent report had supported that. Safeguards to the indemnity were dictated by the Order, and the financial limits were set by Cabinet. He felt these were reasonable, though Cabinet could of course change them if it wished.

 For clarity, Councillor Daley then read through each of the recommendations.

RESOLVED unanimously that an indemnity be provided to Councillors Peter Jackson and John Riddle, and to Mrs Daljit Lally OBE for the purposes of obtaining independent legal advice and representation in respect of the action proposed by the developers of the Dissington Garden Village, and a similar indemnity be provided to Councillor Peter Jackson and Mrs Daljit Lally OBE in respect of action proposed by a former employee, subject to the following terms:

- a. That it covers, retrospectively, and on the terms set out below, the cost of any legal advice which they have obtained in respect of this matter between the issuing of the letter before action on 28 June and the date of this approval;
- b. That the fees of the legal representatives payable by the Council are capped at a level to be agreed by the Council's Cabinet;
- c. That the indemnity is restricted to £10,000 in the first instance with any further advance in tranches of no more that up to £15,000 on each occasion; which extension is only to be agreed following receipt of Counsel's opinion that it is reasonable for the Council to extend the indemnity;
- d. That any costs recovered via any orders or negotiated settlement made in favour of Councillors Jackson, Riddle and Mrs Lally are paid to the Council;
- e. That the indemnity will not apply to legal representation for any action committed by Councillors Jackson and Riddle and Mrs Lally which is outside their authority from the Council; where their actions were fraudulent, deliberately wrong or reckless or not authorised by the Council; were outside the powers of the Council; or where the matter exceeded their own powers and it was not reasonable for them to believe that their actions were within those powers;
- f. That if a Court finds that if all of any of Cllrs Jackson and Riddle, or Mrs Lally behaved improperly, illegally and outside their authority in relation to the developers, then the Council is entitled to be refunded all costs paid out under the indemnity.

CHAIR	
DATE	